
 

Page 1 of 4 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY                          TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
NOVEMBER 16, 2023 – 6:00 P.M.     4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one 
or more members of the Town’s various boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

3. ROLL CALL.   

4. INAUGURATION: 

 A. Administer Oath of Office to Council Members - Elect. 

----- Break for Refreshments ----- 

 B. Reconvene Council meeting. 

 C. Appointment of Vice-Mayor. 

 D. Appointment of Council representatives for interlocal organizations: 

  1. Primary and Alternate representatives at the County Roundtable of Elected 
   Officials. 

  2. Primary and Alternate representatives to the River-To-Sea Transportation  
   Planning Organization. 

  3. Representative to the First Step Shelter, Inc. Board of Directors – any  
   change requires confirmation by the City of Daytona Beach Commission. 

5. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. 

6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:   

 A. Presentation of plaque to Ms. Caswell for her service on the Town Council. 

 B. Presentation of Volusia County’s beach restoration activities – Jessica Fentress, 
Coastal Division Director 



11/16/23 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 2 of 4 

 C. Mayor’s report of Proclamations. 

7.  CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature that do not 
warrant detailed discussion or individual action by the Council; therefore, all items remaining on the 
consent agenda shall be approved and adopted by a single motion, second and vote by the Town Council. 
Items on the consent agenda are not subject to discussion. Any member of the Town Council may remove 
any item from the consent agenda simply by verbal request at the Town Council meeting. Removing an 
item from the consent agenda does not require a motion, second or a vote; it would simply be a unilateral 
request of an individual Council member and this item would then be added as the last item under New 
Business. As with all agenda items, the public will have the opportunity to comment prior to a motion being 
placed on the floor and their comment(s) may persuade Council to remove the item from the Consent 
Agenda and place under New Business for discussion. 

A. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes – October 19, 2023. 

B. Annual Accounting Report from Citizens for Ponce Inlet. 

C. Approval of “Piggyback” Contract with Sweeping Corp of America for the Phase 
II stormwater system cleaning project. 

D. Approval of Facilitated Self-Assessment Manual proposal from Center for Public 
Safety Excellence. 

E. Request to change the date of the August 2024 Town Council regular meeting to 
August 22, 2024. 

8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
MEETING: 

A. Request for use of Town property and co-sponsorship of Operation Changing Lives 
5K race. 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: Certain ordinances, resolutions, 
special exceptions, variances, and permits are Quasi-Judicial items. Members of Council must 
disclose any ex-parte communications concerning any items on this portion of the agenda prior to 
voting. 

10.   PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: 

 A. Second reading and adoption of Ordinance 2023-05, Creating additional Alternate 
Seats for the Essential Services Advisory Board. 

11.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is an opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively on any subject that 
is not identified on the meeting agenda. The Town’s Rules for Conducting Town Council meetings are set 
forth in Resolution 2021-11 and include the following guidelines: 

• Citizens are provided with 5 minutes at each meeting to speak on one or more issues that are not 
otherwise placed on the meeting agenda. 

• Please introduce yourself with your name and address clearly for the record. 



11/16/23 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 3 of 4 

• Share with us your thoughts, ideas, and opinions; we want to hear them. 
• Under our rules, all questions and comments are directed to the Mayor. 

While some questions may be able to be addressed at this meeting, others may require research or more 
information than we have readily available from our staff, so we may have to defer the response to you 
until we have that information. Also, depending on the type of issue, we may place the matter on a properly 
noticed subsequent meeting agenda. As a Council, we welcome the opportunity to hear from you and hope 
you will speak with us not only during Citizen Participation but outside of these meetings. We understand 
the formal nature of this meeting, but rest assured, we want to hear from you, we want to address your 
concerns, and we are appreciative of your involvement. 

12. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  

A. Ordinance 2023-06 – 1st reading – Adopting the 2023 FL Building Code; and 
adopting the Building Official’s Association of Florida’s Model Administrative 
Code (2023) with additions from the Town of Ponce Inlet.  

13.  OLD BUSINESS: None. 

14. NEW BUSINESS: None. 

15.    FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 

D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 

16.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER. 

17.  FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY. 

18.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is another opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively for 2 minutes 
before closure of this meeting regarding reports provided by the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town 
Attorney in items 14-16 (only) of the meeting agenda. 

19.   ADJOURNMENT. 

Next Town Council Meeting date: 

• Thursday, December 21st, 2023, 6:00 p.m. 

 



11/16/23 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 4 of 4 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at a 
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  Persons who require accommodation in order to attend this meeting should contact the Ponce 
Inlet Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request such assistance. 



 
 

 
 

Report to Town Council 
 
Topic: Inauguration 
 
Summary: 
 
 A. Administer the Oath of Office to Councilmembers-elect 
 

--- Break for Refreshments / Photos --- 
 
 B. Reconvene and Roll-Call of New Council 
 
 C. Appointment of Vice-Mayor 
 
 D. Appointment of Council representatives for interlocal 
organizations: 
 

  1. Primary and Alternate representatives at the County 
Roundtable of Elected Officials; 
  

  2. Primary and Alternate representatives to the River-To-
Sea Transportation Planning Organization; 
 

  3. Representative to the First Step Shelter, Inc. Board of 
Directors – any change requires confirmation by the City of Daytona 
Beach Commission. 
 
Requested by:   Ms. Cherbano / Town Clerk 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher / Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   4 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Proclamations, Presentations, and Awards. 
 
Summary: 

A. Presentation of plaque to outgoing Councilmember 
Caswell 

 
B. Presentation of Volusia County’s beach restoration 

activities -  Jessica Fentress, Coastal Division Director 

 C. Mayor’s report of proclamations. 
  
Suggested motion:  None required. 
 
Requested by:   Ms. Cherbano, HR Director/Town Clerk 
 

   Mayor Paritsky 
  
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   6 



6-C

Staff Memo Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 
Town of Ponce Inlet - Office of the Mayor 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community 
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council 

Through: Michael E. Disher, Town Manager 

From: Mayor Lois A. Paritsky  LAP 

Date: November 16, 2023 

Subject: Proclamation Report 

The attached Proclamation was presented at an event honoring and recognizing 
Caroline Marks on November 10th: 

• A Proclamation declaring November 10th, 2023 as Caroline Marks Day.

Copies of the Proclamation may be viewed at the Town Hall kiosk. 

/p 



  

 

WHEREAS, Caroline Marks, a talented and accomplished surfer, was born and raised in Florida, 
where she developed her passion for the sport of surfing at a young age; and 

 WHEREAS, Caroline has exhibited dedication, perseverance, and exceptional talent in the world of 
professional surfing, consistently achieving remarkable milestones and winning numerous titles in various 
competitions, thereby becoming a true inspiration to our community; and 

WHEREAS, Caroline has represented the United States on the global stage as a member of the USA 
Surfing Team, showcasing her remarkable skills and sportsmanship, and bringing pride and recognition to our 
hometown; and 

WHEREAS, Caroline, as the youngest woman athlete to qualify for the World Surf League's 
Championship world tour, won the title in the 2023 World Surf League's Championship Tour; and 

WHEREAS, Caroline has exhibited her love for our community and has a deep affection for the 
ocean as displayed by her enjoyment of our beaches, waves, and jetty; and 

WHEREAS, it is only fitting and proper that we recognize and celebrate Caroline for her 
extraordinary achievements, her dedication to her sport, and her contributions to our community. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor of the Town of Ponce Inlet, do hereby proclaim 
November 10, 2023, as "Caroline Marks Day" in the Town of Ponce Inlet. On this day, we celebrate the 
accomplishments, dedication, and contributions of Caroline. 

Let us come together as a community to honor one of our own, Caroline Marks, and celebrate her as a source 
of pride and inspiration for our town. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the Town of Ponce Inlet 
Florida, to be affixed this 10th day of November 2023. 

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
      Mayor Lois A. Paritsky 
       

Attest: 
Kim Cherbano, CMC/Town Clerk 

 

Proclamation 
Of the 

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Consent Agenda 
 

A. Approval of the Town Council regular meeting minutes - 
October 19, 2023. 

 
 B. Annual accounting report from Citizens for Ponce Inlet. 
 

C. Approval of “Piggyback” contract with Sweeping Corp of 
America for the Phase II stormwater system cleaning project. 

 
 D. Approval of Facilitated Self-Assessment Manual proposal  

from Center for Public Safety Excellence. 
 

E.  Request to change the date of the August 2024 Town Council 
regular meeting to August 22, 2024 

 
Summary: See attached staff reports. 
 
Suggested motion: 

To approve the Consent agenda as presented. 
 
Requested by: Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 
   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
   Mr. Griffith, Public Works Director 
   Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 
    
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   7 



 

Town Council  October 19, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 1 of 6 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Town Council 2 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3 

October 19, 2023 4 
  5 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 6 
order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 
 8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance; she 9 
reviewed the protocol for filling out the Citizens’ Participation request forms for agenda item #10. 10 
 11 
3. ROLL CALL: 12 
 Town Council: 13 
 Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 14 
 Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 15 

Councilmember Caswell, Seat #3  16 
 Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 17 
 Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 18 
 19 
 Staff Members Present: 20 

Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 21 
 Mr. Disher, Town Manager 22 
 Ms. French, Cultural Services Manager 23 
 Ms. Gjessing, Permit Technician 24 

Chief Glazier, Police Chief 25 
Mr. Griffith, Public Works Director 26 
Mr. Okum, IT Manager 27 
Attorney Shephard, Town Attorney 28 

 Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 29 
  30 
4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. Mayor 31 
Paritsky moved item 5D to 5A; there were no other changes and the agenda section was re-lettered 32 
accordingly. 33 
 34 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the agenda as amended; seconded by Councilmember Caswell. 35 
The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 36 
 37 
5. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS: 38 
  39 

A. Proclamations: Mayor Paritsky read the proclamation declaring October 23rd – 31st 40 
as Red Ribbon Week and presented it to Executive Officer David Owen, Unit Commander Sara 41 
Zettlemoyer, and the Volusia Young Marines. Commander Zettlemoyer explained the mission of 42 
the Young Marines. Mayor Paritsky noted that a proclamation declaring the month of October as 43 
Breast Cancer Awareness Month has also been issued and that copies of both proclamations would 44 
be posted in the kiosk at town hall. 45 

 46 



 

Town Council  October 19, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 2 of 6 

B. FPL Storm Preparedness: Florida Power and Light representative Linda 47 
Webster-Dubea, Area Manager, External Affairs provided a presentation on the agency’s 48 
equipment upgrades, storm preparedness, and response to power outages before, during, and after 49 
hurricanes and other storm-related events. 50 

 51 
C. Barracks of Hope – Halifax Urban Ministries: Buck James, Executive Director, 52 

provided a presentation on services provided by HUM’s Barracks of Hope to Veterans and 53 
expressed the agency’s need for funds to construct new facilities; specifically requesting local 54 
governments to consider sponsoring a room at the new facility ($25,000); Mr. James showed a 55 
video of several veterans speaking of how their lives have been dramatically improved through 56 
these services. Ralph Maydar, Veteran Services Officer, Commandant David Owen, and Joe 57 
Suszinski, a 92-year-old Korean War veteran, shared their stories and hopes for the support and 58 
success of this organization. Mr. Disher and Mayor Paritsky noted that funding requests must be 59 
considered during the budget process and an official letter should be sent to the Town Manager for 60 
placement on a Town Council agenda for consideration. Mr. James noted that there is a ground-61 
breaking ceremony on November 10th at 2:00 p.m. and invited Council and the public to attend. 62 
Council briefly discussed the First Step Shelter’s obligation and ideas for fundraisers. 63 

 64 
D. Progress of Invasive Species removal at the Ponce Preserve: Barbara Davis 65 

provided a comprehensive presentation on the progress of removing invasive species at Ponce 66 
Preserve and reported that several native species have been identified. Council thanked Ms. Davis 67 
for organizing this project and for the efforts of the volunteers. 68 
 69 
6. CONSENT AGENDA: Mayor Paritsky asked if there was any item Council would like to 70 
remove from the consent agenda; there were no requests. Mayor Paritsky asked for public 71 
comments – hearing none, she closed public comments. 72 
 73 

A. Town Council Regular meeting minutes – September 21, 2023. 74 
 75 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember 76 
Caswell. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 77 
 78 
7. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 79 
MEETING 80 
 81 

A. Request for use of Town property for the Daytona 100 Ultramarathon event 82 
on December 9th-10th, 2023. Ms. French reviewed her staff report and supporting documents, 83 
noting that this is the second year for this event. There were no questions from Council. Mayor 84 
Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, she closed public comment. 85 
 86 
Councilmember Milano moved to approve the co-sponsorship request of the Daytona 100 87 
Ultramarathon event; seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The motion PASSED 5-0, 88 
consensus. 89 
 90 

B. Lien Reduction/Abatement request: RFM Properties, LLC – 4591 South 91 
Atlantic Avenue. Mr. Hooker provided a report summarizing the Code Enforcement history of 92 
this property, concluding with the lien placed by the Code Enforcement Board due to non-93 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/ET1LX8x_K45HmP7wVsNi0zkBQT3SL-FrTPWsK9ZfrivE5Q?e=pbknvM
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EU7H4zNkq89Ngo9WMCf2jy8B7DghcgRRVhfoCKWUCyrN2A?e=9zd9Ie
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EeySfReRnPFOl-77gLUXx9AB6evQ0fiSGs0aAIDlP7rBhA?e=HQKh7U
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EbIavhqSWZpDjV4EUU3TSYsBgZOqf35MfuPJ3eecXIMeWQ?e=y01OeO
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EUX0P0HglXxGhufqsZwExZ8BueknirNaL1a6MTq6v0OmkQ?e=jHAQf2


 

Town Council  October 19, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 3 of 6 

compliance. The owner was required to either repair the structures or demolish them. He stated 94 
that the property was brought into compliance on July 25th when the demolition of the structures 95 
began. Mr. Mills, owner of the property, apologized for not having the property in compliance and 96 
explained that he recently became a caregiver for his mother-in-law after the death of his father-97 
in-law. He stated that after last year’s hurricanes, it was difficult to find contractors, so he contacted 98 
Samsula Demolition. The structures were then demolished, missing the deadline date by four days. 99 
Councilmember Milano stated that this property has been in non-compliance for quite some time 100 
and in April there were seven certified mail receipts signed as received. He asked Mr. Mills why 101 
it took more than four months to attempt to do anything? Mr. Mills stated the reasons included 102 
family issues and the inability to secure a contractor. Mayor Paritsky outlined the timeline and 103 
noted that several LLCs and a non-profit are owned by Mr. Mills; the State reports were filed and 104 
paid on time; and the property taxes were paid. Vice-Mayor Smith asked if there was any 105 
information provided tonight that was not presented to the Code Board; Mr. Hooker replied no and 106 
confirmed that no representative from RFM appeared at any of the Code Board meetings. 107 
Councilmember Villanella asked for clarification whether Mr. Mills contacted Samsula verbally 108 
or in writing – Mr. Mills responded that the contacts were verbal. A discussion ensued between 109 
Mr. Mills and the Council. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, she closed 110 
public comment. 111 
 112 
Councilmember Milano stated that based on the testimony and evidence, moved to deny the lien 113 
reduction/abatement request filed by RFM Properties; seconded by Councilmember Caswell. The 114 
motion PASSED 5-0, with the following vote: Councilmember Milano -yes; Councilmember 115 
Caswell – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember Villanella – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 116 
The request is DENIED. 117 

 118 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 119 
 120 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 121 
 122 
10. CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION: Mayor Paritsky opened citizens’ participation. Mark 123 
Oebbecke, 4758 S. Peninsula Drive: thanked Council for allowing Barracks of Hope to provide a 124 
presentation; he noted that the Marine Cadets will be participating in the Christmas parade; the 125 
tree canopy is blocking the light along the S. Peninsula Drive sidewalk and encroaching on the 126 
power lines; attention needs to be focused on the crosswalk at North Turn Restaurant as pedestrians 127 
do not pay attention to traffic; suggested gates or painting the street; thanked Public Works staff 128 
for their support of the Community Center. Mr. Disher noted that Atlantic Avenue is a County 129 
roadway and they will not install a crosswalk or flashing beacons if it appears to benefit a private 130 
entity. Mayor Paritsky closed public participation.   131 
 132 
11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  133 
 134 

A. Ordinance 2023-05. Attorney Shepard read the Ordinance by title only. AN  135 
ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, 136 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE IV, DIVISION 3 OF THE TOWN’S CODE OF 137 
ORDINANCES TO CREATE A CORRESPONDING ALTERNATE SEAT FOR EACH 138 
REGULAR SEAT OF THE ESSENTIAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD; PROVIDING FOR 139 
CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. Mr. Disher 140 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/_layouts/15/onedrive.aspx?ga=1&id=%2Fpersonal%2Fphunt%5Fponce%2Dinlet%5Forg%2FDocuments%2FExternalLinks%2FAgenda%20packets%20%2D%20Town%20Council%2F2023%20Council%20agenda%20packets%2F10%2D19%2D2023%2F10%2D29%2D23%20Individual%20Agenda%20Items%2F11A%20Ord%202023%2D05%2Epdf&parent=%2Fpersonal%2Fphunt%5Fponce%2Dinlet%5Forg%2FDocuments%2FExternalLinks%2FAgenda%20packets%20%2D%20Town%20Council%2F2023%20Council%20agenda%20packets%2F10%2D19%2D2023%2F10%2D29%2D23%20Individual%20Agenda%20Items


 

Town Council  October 19, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 4 of 6 

noted that this is on the list of Goals for the Clerk’s office and it has been determined that an 141 
Alternate Seat for each Regular Seat is needed; the ordinance clarifies language and streamlines 142 
review procedures for items that have already gone to the Town Council. Councilmember Caswell 143 
asked what types of contracts would no longer be on the ESAB agenda for review, and are there 144 
contracts that ESAB previously reviewed? Mr. Disher stated the intent of this ordinance is to align 145 
responsibilities with the town’s purchasing policies; and confirmed there are no outstanding 146 
contracts that the ESAB has not reviewed. Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing 147 
none, she closed public participation. 148 

Councilmember Villanella moved to approve first reading of Ordinance 2023-05 as presented; 149 
seconded by Councilmember Caswell. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: 150 
Councilmember Villanella – yes; Councilmember Caswell – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; 151 
Councilmember Milano – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 152 
 153 
12. OLD BUSINESS: None. 154 
 155 
13. NEW BUSINESS:  156 
 157 

A. Grant of temporary access and construction easement to Volusia County to 158 
install “Trap Bags” for shoreline protection at the Ponce Preserve. Mr. Disher explained that 159 
the purpose of the easement is to allow the County to install “trap bags” at the Ponce Preserve area 160 
of the beach to avoid and control further erosion on 876 feet of shoreline. The Easement is a 161 
temporary five-year agreement to allow the County and Army Corps of Engineers to clear the area 162 
of debris and then begin installation. Councilmember Caswell asked why the need for a five-year 163 
easement. Mr. Disher stated that it is standard language but does not mean it will take five years, 164 
this is temporary and project-specific. Attorney Shepard read the section of the ordinance that 165 
addresses timeline and noted that it depends on when the project starts. Mayor Paritsky opened 166 
public participation – Councilmember-elect Skip White explained that each resident along the 167 
coastline is required to sign; there will be a meeting with Jessica Fentress, Coastal Division 168 
Director and this is free to residents; they are dumping sand and this process started approximately 169 
six months ago. Councilmember Caswell asked if there will be notification to residents before the 170 
project begins; Mr. White stated that once all the Easements are signed, the Army Corps of 171 
Engineers will put the project in their timeline. Howard Paritsky, 4757 S. Atlantic Avenue stated 172 
that after their Easement was signed, the trap bags were installed within a week and the owners 173 
saved $100,000 dollars. Mayor Paritsky closed public participation. Vice-Mayor Smith asked if 174 
beach access at the Ponce Preserve would be blocked. Mr. Disher replied, no. 175 
 176 
Councilmember Milano moved to grant the 5-year access and construction Easement to Volusia 177 
County to enable the installation of trap bags along the coastline of the Ponce Preserve; seconded 178 
by Councilmember Caswell. The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 179 
 180 

B. Support for seeking requests for legislative appropriation. Mr. Disher stated 181 
that next week staff from the Town and other municipalities members will be meeting with the 182 
Volusia County Legislative Delegation. This meeting occurs once a year and allows municipalities 183 
to ask for additional funding, appropriations, and/or changes to policy. The Town’s proposal is to 184 
request funding of three projects: two generators (one at the fire station and one at public works) 185 
and providing construction funding for the first phase of the septic-to-sewer project. The 186 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/Ef4qgehY2PhHlHg29C28vAgBWWEHWyfJ3RFtX8ogANUJWw?e=66clKF
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EdpStjHukQdPpFFROOifN6UB6BEY4JErb6UnIabO0e0Ovg?e=6kXYH5


 

Town Council  October 19, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 5 of 6 

generators were approved during the 2023 legislative session but cut from the state budget by the 187 
Governor. All of these requests will be for 50/50 funding. Councilmember Caswell asked who Mr. 188 
Disher conferred with to determine these items and was there anything left off? Mr. Disher 189 
reiterated that some of these are items that were requested last year and cut by the Governor, so he 190 
is seeking Council’s support to seek funding for these items again this year. Mayor Paritsky noted 191 
that the Septic-to-Sewer project has been under discussion for many years. Councilmember 192 
Caswell suggested asking for more funds. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, 193 
she closed public comment. 194 
 195 
Council consensus to support seeking requests for legislative appropriations; by consensus, 5-0. 196 
 197 

C. Discussion of foreclosure on outstanding code enforcement liens for non-198 
homesteaded properties. Mr. Hooker provided a report indicating the number of liens against 199 
non-homesteaded properties and noted that as the owner of the lien, the Town can foreclose on 200 
these properties after 90 days of date of filing per state law. He reported that there are eight non-201 
homesteaded properties with liens totaling $196,160. He noted that this topic was presented and 202 
discussed during the September Code Enforcement Board meeting and the members supported 203 
sending letters to each of the property owners advising them of their debt and impending 204 
foreclosure; he explained the process for how that would transpire. Vice-Mayor Smith asked how 205 
long after the lien is filed can foreclosure proceedings begin. Mr. Hooker stated F.S. 162 requires 206 
a minimum of 90 days, and property owners would be notified via certified mail. Councilmember 207 
Milano noted that Mr. Mills was sent certified mail to seven different addresses; Mr. Hooker stated 208 
notices will be sent to all known addresses per F.S. 162.09(3) and that property owners would be 209 
given the opportunity to seek a reduction or abatement. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment. 210 
Councilmember-elect Skip White, 4885 S. Atlantic Ave - noted that there is a property on the list 211 
where a new home is being built; could we deny a construction permit until the lien is paid? 212 
Attorney Shepard stated he was unsure as there may be other variables. Mayor Paritsky added that 213 
if a lien is reduced, and that amount is not paid within the timeframe given, the lien amount 214 
increases to the original lien amount. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, she 215 
closed public comment. 216 
 217 
Council authorized staff to begin foreclosure process for non-homesteaded properties; by 218 
consensus, 5-0. 219 
 220 

D. Support for the City of Debary in proposing amendments to the Live Local 221 
Act. Mr. Disher stated that the FL Legislature passed SB 102 this year as a means to remove 222 
barriers to and encourage development of affordable housing (see report). While affordable 223 
housing is needed, the Act attempts to achieve it by circumventing local governments’ land use 224 
and development codes and zoning laws. The City of DeBary is leading the charge for amendments 225 
to the rule by asking for support from local jurisdictions. Mayor Paritsky noted that this item is on 226 
the Volusia Elected Officials Roundtable discussion agenda for next week. Councilmembers 227 
expressed deep concerns regarding SB 102 and the unintended consequences it could have on local 228 
governments. Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – hearing none, she closed public comment. 229 
 230 
Council consensus to support the City of Debary in requesting amendments to the Live Local Act; 231 
5-0. 232 
 233 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EXFPA7K69hhLnkG99OLF5YEBxgd1OLTCcGdLThFNc6iqeQ?e=FnYAP3
https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/ETDf-kTFFQhCkRV6kJMj-zoBZvIkCELGVxvUfDkXqQlA8w?e=5oqkft


 

Town Council  October 19, 2023 
Regular Meeting Minutes  Page 6 of 6 

 14. FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 234 
 235 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 – Stated that he had nothing further. 236 
 237 

 B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 – Reiterated his concerns of unintended 238 
consequences from bad legislation. 239 
 240 

C. Councilmember Caswell, Seat #3 – Stated this is her last meeting as a member of 241 
Council and requested that everyone support Councilmember-elect White; she noted that 242 
Councilmembers devote a lot of time to make the right decisions and engage the public. 243 

 244 
D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 – Thanked PICCI members for donating clothes 245 

left from the Yard Sale to the First Step Shelter; noted that since opening in 2019, approximately 246 
115 guests were veterans. 247 
 248 
 E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 – Reported that the Coffee and Cake with Volusia County 249 
Sheriff Mike Chitwood was a success; it was a packed house and she thanked all who helped her 250 
by making and serving the coffee, serving the cake, and welcoming residents to the event; as 251 
President of the Volusia League of Cities, she had the opportunity to speak at the Deland and 252 
Debary City Council meetings about bringing new council members into the Leagues’ mentorship 253 
program and that workshops and other resources are available to the elected officials; she noted 254 
that new and seasoned elected officials should understand the League is a resource and that reading 255 
their Municipal Charter, and understanding Sunshine and public records laws are essential for them 256 
to be the most effective advocates for their constituents. 257 
  258 
15. FROM THE TOWN MANAGER – See Mr. Disher’s staff report. 259 
 260 
16. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY – Attorney Shephard stated he had nothing further to 261 
report. 262 
 263 
17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (on items 14 – 16 only) – Mayor Paritsky opened public 264 
participation. Mayor Paritsky closed public comment. 265 
 266 
18. ADJOURNMENT – With no further business, Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 267 
8:28 p.m. 268 
 269 
Respectfully submitted by: 270 
 271 
Draft         272 
Kim Cherbano, CMC / Town Clerk 273 
Prepared by: Peg Hunt, CMC / Deputy Clerk 274 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/phunt_ponce-inlet_org/EYJ-yDx2A4BMutUSMfHtsRwB_L0s8_yH0e56lacU5u0BsQ?e=t1IQQr


MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council  
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: November 1, 2023 
Subject: Citizens for Ponce Inlet (C4PI) – Annual Accounting Report 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 

Pursuant to Resolution 2020-16, C4PI has provided the attached information regarding how the 
annual $4,000 contribution from the Town was spent.  

The Town has participated in providing newsletter articles for four of the five editions of the C4PI 
newsletter this year. Town staff does not typically submit articles for the summer election edition, 
which is intended as a forum for candidates to introduce themselves and respond to questions. 

C4PI records and posts Town Council meetings on its website, providing a service to the public 
not currently offered by the Town. The Town also provides C4PI with copies of public records 
upon request, which C4PI makes available to its members at no charge, pursuant to its agreement 
with the Town. In the past, C4PI has also conducted surveys for the Town, such as obtaining 
feedback to improvements to the dog park. 

In accordance with Resolution 2020-16, $4,000 has been provided in the Town’s approved budget 
for C4PI in the current fiscal year to ensure that the newsletter remains available online at no 
charge to all Town residents and property owners. 

Attachment 
C4PI 202 Annual Accounting Report 

7-B



Citizens For ١--»؛
PONCE !NLET

ARorida Non-Profit Corporarion

E D U C AT E & P R E S E RV E

October 29, 2023

Mr. Mike Disher, Town Manager
To w n o f P o n c e ! n ! e t

4 3 0 0 s . A t؛a n t i c Av e n u e

Ponce !n!et, F!orida 32127

Citizens for Ponce In et Newsletter Agreement

D e a r M r. D i s h e r

On May 18, 2023, the Department of the Treasury officially granted 501 c3
Public Charity status to the Citizens for Ponce Inlet, Inc. organization. We
take immense pride in this achievement, and we want to assure your
community that both our Board and Advisory Board 'Volunteers remain
committed to delivering essential services.

2023 signifies the 40th anniversary of CFPI'S newsletter distribution to Ponce
Inlet residents. You can easily access four decades' worth of intriguing and
historical information in the Newsletter Section on our website, completely
free of charge. Our Quarterly Newsletters, along with the Annual Election
Edition are directly emailed to our members.

Promoting and Improving the Quality of Life in the Town of Ponce Inlet

Citizens For Ponce Inlet, Inc.
c/o Ponce Inlet Community Center

4670 s. Peninsula Dr., Ponce Inlet, FI 32127info@C4Pi.org www.C4P!.org



!ท 2٥22 we were ab!e to mai! apaper-based Election Edition Newsletter to
every resident. Regrettably, due to the associated costs, we couldn't
replicate this effort in the current year. Nevertheless, in 2023, we've been
shifting many volunteer responsibilities to NSB Hosting. This transition,
while incurring some additional expenses, provides US with greater
flexibility in serving our residents.

In accordance with the Citizens for Ponce Inlet (C4Pİ) Newsletter Agreement
with the Town, concerning the Town's contribution of $4,000 for the
CFPI/Town Digital Newsletter in the fiscal year 2022-2023, I'm providing the
following financial breakdown:

CFPI Expenses from October 1. 2022. to September 30. 2023:
٠Telecom Email Subscription Service, Web Hosting &Cloud Storage,

Per Diem Tech Support, and NSB payments: $1,569.16
٠Expense or Citizen of the Year &lifetime Achievement Awards

Dinner, Miscellaneous Accounting for Florida Dept, of State هFederal
Services for 50٦c3 filing, Vimeo هVideo Dropbox Storage $3,998.72

٠Unpaid Invoices for Newsletter Design &Creation. $850...

T.TAL ANNUAL EXPENSE: $6,417.87

Our organizahon is grateful for the inclusion of Town informahon in our
newsletter, and we sincerely hope that you are content with the services we offer.
Your ongoing support is greatly appreciated.

Warm regards.

Judy DiCarlo, President
Sue Fillion, Treasurer



Page 1 of 1 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Fred W. Griffith, P.E., Public Works Director 

Date: October 27, 2023 

Subject: Request to approve “Piggyback” Contract with Sweeping Corps of America for 
the Phase II Stormwater System Cleaning 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2023 

In January of 2023, the Town Council approved the implementation of Phase I of the stormwater 
drainage system evaluation and maintenance program. This program was initiated after last year’s 
unprecedented rainfall and resulting flooding from Hurricane Ian, and was recommended by the 
Essential Services Advisory Board (ESAB). The Town has three miles, or 16,560 feet, of storm 
pipes that need to be evaluated periodically and cleaned if needed. Phase 1 of the program focused 
on the south half of Town where the worst flooding occurred. The maintenance program 
documented the existing conditions of the system, identified stormwater pipes that needed to be 
cleaned, and started the cleaning process. The Town entered into a contract with Sweeping Corp 
of America (SCA), as part of a cooperative purchasing program, to perform this work.  

Phase II of the project will focus on all Town roads north of Calumet Avenue. The Phase II project 
proposal was reviewed by the ESAB at its March 2023 budget meeting and was approved by the 
Town Council for the fiscal year 23/24 budget. For Phase II, Staff is requesting to enter into another 
cooperative purchase agreement with SCA. SCA has provided a current contract awarded through 
a competitive bid with the City of Orlando. The contract with the City of Orlando is attached for 
your review, along with the City of Orlando's and SCA’s approval to utilize this existing contract’s 
unit prices for the purposes outlined above. 

Staff is recommending that the Town accept the stormwater maintenance proposal from SCA. 
Funds are currently budgeted in the Stormwater Maintenance Account, 001-0039-538-4600 for 
this previously planned expenditure.   

Attachments:  
E-mail from City of Orlando
Existing Orlando Contract
Cost Proposal from SCA

7-C













































MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
From: Daniel Scales, Public Safety Director  
Date: November 2, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Facilitated Self-Assessment Manual Proposal from Center for Public 

Safety Excellence in the Amount of $44,700 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2023 

During the FY 23/24 budget process, the Town Council approved funding of a facilitated process 
for the creation of a Self-Assessment Manual (SAM), which is a required component of fire 
department accreditation. The Center for Public Safety Excellence (CPSE) will facilitate the 
process. 

Even though CPSE staff will be facilitators during this process, all levels of fire department staff 
will be involved, with the Deputy Fire Chief being the lead department representative. The SAM 
will be the final significant component for fire department accreditation, allowing Ponce Inlet to 
move to the next level of accreditation, from applicant to candidate status. 

The SAM project is scheduled to begin in January of 2024 and be completed sometime in August 
of 2024. 

Staff requests the Town Council accept and approve the attached scope-of-work for the SAM 
creation process in the Amount $44,700. The CPSE has been identified as the sole-source service 
provider for this task.  

7-D













MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET – OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET STAFF SHALL BE PROFESSIONAL, CARING, AND FAIR IN DELIVERING COMMUNITY EXCELLENCE 
WHILE ENSURING PONCE  INLET CITIZENS OBTAIN THE GREATEST VALUE FOR THEIR TAX DOLLAR. 

TO: Town Council 
FROM: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
DATE: November 9, 2023 
SUBJECT: Request to change the date of the August 2024 Town Council regular meeting to 

August 22, 2024 

Meeting Date: November 16, 2023 

In reviewing the calendar for 2024, the regular Town Council meeting on August 15th conflicts with 
the Florida League of Cities annual conference August 15th through August 17th in Hollywood, 
Florida. In the event you wish to attend this conference, I request that you move the regular Town 
Council meeting to August 22nd.  

The dates for the regular Town Council meetings in 2024 are as follows: 

January 18th  
February 15th 
March 21st  
April 18th  
May 16th 
June 20th 
July 18th  
August 15th  
September 19th 
October 17th  
November 21st  
December 19th  

If you are aware of any other conflicts, you may request a change now or in the coming year, so 
long as it is done before the regular meeting preceding the one where a change is desired. The 
greater the notice the better for scheduling agenda items. Thank you. 

7-E



Report to Town Council 

Topic: Request for use of Town Property and co-sponsorship 
of 

Operation Changing Lives 5k race. 

Summary: 
See attached staff report and supporting documents. 

Suggested motion:  As determined by Council. 

Requested by:   Ms. French, Cultural Services Manager 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community 
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Jackie French, Cultural Services Manager 

Date: October 31, 2023 

Subject: Request for Use of Town Property: 2023 Operation Changing Lives 5K 

MEETING DATE:  November 16, 2023 

Ms. Cherise Wintz has submitted her special event permit application through the Cultural 
Services Department for the Operation Changing Lives 5K. This event was previously held in 
Ponce Inlet from 2010-2019 and is scheduled once again for Saturday, January 6, 2024.  

Organizers expect approximately 250 runners this year. Proceeds from this event are used to fund 
worldwide reconstructive surgeries for children and adults with facial deformities. In addition, this 
event provides funding and gifts for Christmas parties held at various elementary schools in 
Volusia and Flagler Counties. 

In years past, Ms. Wintz has requested co-sponsorship in the form of using the Town’s means of 
advertising, waiving the special event application fees, and waiving the pavilion rental fee for a 
total cost of $260 incurred by the Town. Ms. Wintz was responsible for the cost of off-duty Public 
Works and Police services and provided proof of insurance.  

In 2019, the last year this event was held, staff received complaints from one resident on Sailfish 
Drive regarding the noise produced at the start of the race. As part of its review of the upcoming 
event, the Town’s special event committee discussed this with the organizer.  Ms. Wintz has agreed 
with the committee’s suggestion of placing sound amplification within the closed boat ramp area 
and directing it away from Sailfish Drive.  

Since the last race was held, the Town has updated its Special Event ordinance and criteria for co-
sponsorship approval:  

Sec. 51-2. – Definitions: Town-sponsored event 
Town-sponsored event means that the town, solely or as a co-sponsor of the event, produces 
and/or coordinates the event, or contributes town services, funds, staff, or aid of any kind 
as a co-sponsor, after determining that the event:  

(a) Is planned, organized, and conducted by the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board,
Inc., or any established not-for-profit organizations and clubs based in Ponce Inlet,

8-A



 

  

such as the Ponce Inlet Veterans Association, Ponce Inlet Lions Club, Ponce Inlet 
Garden Club, Ponce Inlet Women’s Club, and the Ponce Inlet Art Guild, that annually 
provide a copy of their currently valid IRS tax exemption certificate as an established 
501(c)3 organization; and/or 
 

(b) Has been traditionally co-sponsored by the Town as provided in Sec. 51-8(a). 
 

Sec. 51-8(a). – Co-sponsorship or co-sponsored event criteria and standards:  
(a) Based on the Town’s long tradition of co-sponsoring certain annual events based on 

repeated findings that they provide a local commemoration of a national holiday or 
provide historical, educational, cultural enrichment or recreational experiences to the 
public and town residents, the town council, in its sole discretion, may grant full co-
sponsorship to those long-standing events identified and approved via resolution. 

 
Pursuant to Sec. 51-2. and Sec. 51-8(a), the Operation Changing Lives 5K does not meet the 
criteria for event co-sponsorship. Although hosted and planned by the non-profit Operation 
Changing Lives, this organization is not based in Ponce Inlet. For this event, staff must refer to 
Sec. 51-8(d) below,  
 

(d)  For events that do not meet the definition of Town-sponsored event under Sec. 51-2 
described above, a written request shall be delivered to the town’s cultural services 
department at least 60 days prior to the event by an applicant if use of town facilities, 
parking on town property, and/or street closures are found to be required for the event 
based on the findings of the town’s special event review committee. Town staff may 
provide a report and recommendation to the town council for review. 

 
Acknowledging that the Operation Changing Lives 5K does not meet the current criteria for co-
sponsorship request, the applicant has submitted her request for the use of Town property during 
the event along with the special event permit application packet (Attachment 1). 
 
The request includes closure of both the boat ramp and boat ramp trailer parking lot for this event, 
as well as use of the Davies Park pavilion. Street closures will occur along the race route with both 
Police and volunteers at intersections. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Request is for use of town property for the Operation Changing Lives 5K scheduled for January 
6, 2024; the request is for closure of the boat ramp and boat ramp trailer parking lot; use of Davies 
Park pavilion; and street closures along the race route with the event organizers providing 
volunteers at street intersections.   
 
 
                 October 31, 2023      
Jackie French, Cultural Services Manager                     Date 
 
Attachments:  

1. Application Packet_2023 Operation Changing Lives 5K 























 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Second reading and adoption of Ordinance 2023-05, creating 

Alternate seats for each Regular seat on the Essential 
Services Advisory Board. 

 
Summary: This Ordinance is being presented to Council for second  

  reading and adoption. There have been no changes since the  
  first reading. 

 
Suggested motion: 

To approve and adopt Ordinance 2023-05 as presented. 
 
Requested by:   Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 

Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   10-A 







Ordinance 2023-05 
Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 2023-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE IV, DIVISION 3 OF THE TOWN’S 
CODE OF ORDINANCES TO CREATE A 
CORRESPONDING ALTERNATE SEAT FOR EACH 
REGULAR SEAT OF THE ESSENTIAL SERVICES 
ADVISORY BOARD; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council enjoys and appreciates the assistance of its current 
regulatory and advisory boards and all of the citizen participation that this process is intended to 
generate; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council seeks to obtain advisory board recommendations on 

matters related to the provision of current needs for essential services and master planning to 
ensure the Town’s long-term well-being via infrastructure improvements and staffing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council created the Essential Services Advisory Board to research, 

analyze, and provide recommendations to the Town Council on matters related to police, fire, 
public works, and other essential Town services as described more fully in this ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the regular seats on the Essential Services Advisory Board are filled by those 

with experience in five specific disciplines related to the aforementioned essential services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to increase the number of alternate seats on the 

Essential Services Advisory Board to ensure that each discipline is represented at all times. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED by the Town Council of the Town of Ponce 

Inlet, Florida as follows: 
 
NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Code of Ordinances, strikethrough 

constitutes deletions, and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text which is 
intended to remain unchanged.  

  
 SECTION 1.  Chapter 2, Article IV, Division 3 – “ESSENTIAL SERVICES ADVISORY 
BOARD” of the Town’s Code of Ordinances is hereby amended as follows: 
 

Division 3. ESSENTIAL SERVICES ADVISORY BOARD 
 
Section 2-120.   Established.  An essential services advisory board is created that has the 
powers, duties, and responsibilities set forth in this division, to be carried out in accordance 
with this code.  
 



Ordinance 2023-05 
Page 2 of 4 

Section 2-121.   Membership and terms of office.  The essential services advisory board 
shall consist of five regular members and two five alternates appointed by the town council.  
Each regular member shall be appointed for a three-year term, in staggered sequence, with 
the exception for the initial terms of members on this five-member board:  terms for seats 
one and three shall expire December 2023, terms for seats two and four shall expire 
December 2022, and the term for seat five shall expire December 2021.  Alternate members 
shall be appointed to an annual term ending in December of each year.   
 
Section 2-122.   Qualifications.  The essential services advisory board shall be composed 
of qualified electors of the town with specified qualifications for each seat as herein 
described.  Preference shall be given to full-time residents.  Members cannot be employees 
of the town.  Board member seats shall be filled by those with experience in a specified 
discipline as follows:   
 a. Seat One – Law enforcement background; 
 b. Seat Two – Fire-rescue & EMS background; 
 c. Seat Three – Engineering background; 

d. Seat Four – CPA / financial background; 
 e. Seat Five – Public relations, outreach, or human resources   

 background; 
f. Alternates – shall May be representatives of one any of the above five 

disciplines above, so long as both alternates are not of the same discipline; 
alternates may only progress to a regular seat if their specified discipline is 
available. 

 
Section 2-123.  Rules of procedure. 

a. The essential services advisory board shall normally meet quarterly, at a 
minimum of twice per year, including the annual budget meeting as required 
by Section 2-125. All meetings of the board shall be duly advertised for 
public notice and participation.  If there is no meeting for the board to 
conduct, the meeting can be canceled. 

b. The essential services advisory board shall regularly receive assistance and 
relative expertise from the police department, fire department, and essential 
public works department in the performance of the board’s responsibilities.  
Assistance and relative expertise from other departments shall be provided 
as needed for subject -specific items. 

c. The town council may assign a matter not addressed by this division to the 
essential services advisory board for review and advice at any time. 

d. No actions by the town may be invalidated solely due to failure to submit 
the action to the essential services advisory board for review. 

 
Section 2-124.   Powers and duties.  The essential services advisory board shall research, 
analyze, and provide recommendations to the town council on matters related to police, 
fire, and public works, as hereby set forth: 

a. Strategic master planning of infrastructure improvements:  water, sewer, 
stormwater, roadways, sidewalks, and street lighting; 

b. Town Ooperational facility planning; 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"



Ordinance 2023-05 
Page 3 of 4 

c. Capital purchase requests in excess of $50,000 prior to submittal for budget 
preparation related to the Town’s infrastructure improvements, fleet 
management, and equipment.  Emergency purchases, as defined in the 
town’s code, exceeding $50,000 related to infrastructure improvements, 
fleet management, and equipment need not be reviewed by the board before 
purchase but shall be reported to the board at its next meeting; 

d. Additions or deletions to operational staffing levels in the police, fire, and 
public works departments; and 

e. Contracts and interlocal agreements related to the provision of services 
within these departments that are subject to town council approval. The 
board will not be required to review contracts or projects previously 
approved by the town council.  

 
Operational activities required by the Volusia County code, Florida State Statute, or Florida 
Administrative Rule are not the responsibility of the essential services advisory board. 
 
Section 2-125. Annual Budget Meeting.  In March of each year, beginning in 2022, the 
board shall meet to review and advise regarding major budgetary items for the upcoming 
fiscal year. The town manager or designee shall incorporate or address the board’s 
recommendations when submitting a proposed budget to the town council. The heads of 
the various departments of the Town shall submit the following budgetary requests for 
consideration at the annual meeting when the expenditures would occur in the following 
fiscal year and the specific expenditures or staffing changes have not yet been reviewed by 
the board or approved by the Town Council: 

a. Initial expenditures commencing a new phase or project of an approved 
master plan;  

b. Initial expenditures for the planning of a new Town facility; 
c. Capital purchase requests of greater $50,000.00 related to the Town’s 

infrastructure improvements, fleet management, and equipment; and 
d. Additions or deletions to operational staffing levels in the police, fire, and 

public works departments, excluding independent contractors. 
 
The town manager or designee shall incorporate or address the board’s recommendations 
when submitting a proposed budget to the town council. 

  
SECTION 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
SECTION 3.  If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for 

any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such portion 
shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect 
the validity portion thereto. 

 
 SECTION 4. It is the intention of the town council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida, 
that this Ordinance shall be codified into the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Ponce Inlet. The 
Code’s codifier is hereby granted that authority as necessary for that purpose. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"



Ordinance 2023-05 
Page 4 of 4 

 
SECTION 5.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
It was moved by      and seconded by     that 

said Ordinance be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion 
resulted as follows:  

    
  Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     

Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    
Councilmember Caswell, Seat #3    
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4       
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     

  
Passed on first reading this    day of     2023. 
 
  It was moved by      and seconded by     that 
said Ordinance be passed on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion 
resulted as follows:  

   
  Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1     

Councilmember Milano, Seat #2    
Councilmember White, Seat #3    
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4       
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5     

  
Passed and adopted on second reading this    day of     2023. 
  
        Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
 
 
              
        Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kim Cherbano, CMC 
Town Clerk 



 
 

 
 

Report to Town Council 
 
Topic: First reading of Ordinance 2023-06, adopting the 2023 FL 

Building Code; and adopting the Building Official’s 
Association of Florida’s Model Administrative Code (2023) 
with additions from the Town of Ponce Inlet. 

 
Summary:  

The Planning & Development Department is proposing 
amendments to Code of Ordinances Chapters 18 and 34 
concerning building permit and construction regulations. The 
proposed changes are intended to update various codes that the 
Town has adopted by reference, and include the 2023 edition 
of the Florida Building Code, the 2023 Building Officials 
Association of Florida (BOAF) Model Administrative Code, 
2021 International Property Maintenance Code and National 
Electrical Code. 

  
Suggested motion: 

To approve first reading of Ordinance 2023-06, as presented. 
 

Requested by:   Mr. Baker, Chief Building Official 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager. 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   12-A 



Page 1 of 6 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

BUILDING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT DIVISION 
The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community 
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To: Michael E Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
From: Robert Baker, Chief Building Official/Certified Floodplain Manager 
Date: November 9, 2023 
Subject: Ordinance 2023-06 – Updating Code of Ordinances Chapter 18 – Buildings and 

Building Regulations; adopting the Florida Building Code, 8th Edition (2023) and 
certain appendices thereto; adopting the NFPA 70 National Electrical Code; adopting 
the 2021 International Property Maintenance Code; and adopting the BOAF’s Model 
Administrative Code (2023) with local additions thereto  

 
 

MEETING DATE:  November 16 , 2023 
 

 
INTRODUCTION 1 
The Planning & Development Department is proposing amendments to Code of Ordinances 2 
Chapter 18 concerning building permit and construction regulations. The proposed changes are 3 
intended to clarify regulations and to update various codes that the Town has adopted by reference, 4 
including the 2023 edition of the Florida Building Code, the 2023 Building Officials Association 5 
of Florida (BOAF) Model Administrative Code, the National Electrical Code, and the 2021 6 
International Property Maintenance Code. Most notably, the Model Administrative Code now 7 
includes milestone inspection procedures for threshold buildings, pursuant to F.S. § 553.899. 8 
Proposed changes to the Code of Ordinances and to the 2023 Model Administrative Code are 9 
discussed separately in this report. 10 
 11 
BACKGROUND 12 
Pursuant to §553.76, Florida Statutes, the Florida Building Commission has adopted the “Florida 13 
Building Code, 8th Edition (2023).” Builders must comply with the Building Code and local 14 
governments must follow the Building Code when issuing permits and inspecting new 15 
construction. The Florida Building Commission updates the Florida Building Code every three 16 
years, and local governments are required to adopt the latest version by reference. Section 17 
553.73(4)(a), Florida Statutes also allows local governments to adopt additional administrative 18 
standards regarding Chapter 1 of the Florida Building Code. When local governments adopt an 19 
administrative chapter to the Building Code, it becomes Chapter 1 of the Florida Building Code 20 
for that local government.  The local government is then required to transmit its local amendments 21 
to the administrative code to the Florida Building Commission within 30 days after enactment, per 22 
F.S. § 553.73(4)(a).   23 
 24 



Page 2 of 6 

Local governments primarily use the Model Administrative Code published by the Building 25 
Officials Association of Florida (BOAF) as a guide when adopting their administrative chapters to 26 
the Building Code and then make additions or changes BOAF Model Administrative Code to fit 27 
the needs of the community. When the Florida Building Commission amends the Building Code, 28 
the BOAF updates the Model Code to reflect the changes in the amended Building Code. The latest 29 
version of the Model Code includes procedures for milestone inspections of threshold buildings 30 
(multifamily structures of three or more stories), as adopted by the Florida Legislature in 2022. 31 
 32 
DISCUSSION 33 
Following is an explanation of the amendments to Chapter 18 of the Code of Ordinances and 34 
changes to the Model Administrative Code adopted by the Town. 35 
 36 
Code of Ordinances Amendments 37 
Chapter 18 – Buildings and Building Regulations – governs the permitting and construction 38 
process under the authority of the Florida Building Code and other codes adopted by reference. It 39 
also contains reference to property maintenance regulations relied upon for Code Enforcement 40 
purposes. The proposed changes to this chapter are located in Exhibit “A” of Ordinance 2023-06, 41 
and are described as follows: 42 
 43 

Article I – In General 44 

• Section 18-3. – Submission of surveys. Removes the mandatory form board survey 45 
requirement for pools and spas. The majority of pool decks these days are formed out of 46 
semi-pervious brick or concrete pavers, which can be easily removed or relocated to meet 47 
setback requirements upon final inspection. A form board survey unnecessarily adds time 48 
and expense to such projects. 49 

• Sec. 18-4. – Posting of address numbers. Adds a requirement for beach front properties to 50 
post address numbers that face the beach. This is being done in conjunction with the other 51 
beachside jurisdictions in Volusia County to improve emergency response. Having address 52 
numbers facing the beach is necessary in situations where emergency responders need to 53 
access a property from the beach. The ordinance includes a 120-day compliance deadline 54 
from the date of adoption.  55 

• Sec. 18-5. – Florida Building Code adopted. Updates references to and officially adopts 56 
the Florida Building Code, 8th Edition (2023) and related appendices. 57 

• Sec. 18-7. – Restrictions on building and construction operations on Saturdays, Sundays 58 
and holidays. The language governing the days and hours of allowable and prohibited 59 
construction activities is being transposed into a table for easier reading and understanding. 60 
The Department already posts a similar table on its webpage. No changes are being 61 
proposed to the hours, days, or activities themselves.  62 

 63 
Article II – Building Code 64 

• Sec.18-31. – Model Administrative Code adopted; local additions to the Model 65 
Administrative code adopted. This section is amended to reflect that the Town is adopting 66 
BOAF’s Model Administrative Code (2023) with local amendments thereto as 67 
recommended by the Chief Building Official. The Model Administrative Code with the 68 



Page 3 of 6 

Town’s additions is attached and expressly incorporated into the Ordinance under Exhibit 69 
“B.”  70 

 71 
Article IX – Excavation and Grading Code 72 

• Sec. 18-241 – Adopted. Updates references to the Florida Building Code, 8th Edition (2023) 73 
and adopts the 2023 version of Appendix J, Grading. 74 

 75 
Article XI – Housing Code 76 

• Sec. 18-411 is amended to reflect the adoption of the most recent version of the 77 
International Property Maintenance Code (2021).   78 

 79 
Model Administrative Code Amendments 80 
The local amendments recommended by the Chief Building Official are summarized on 81 
Attachment 1 of this report. The Model Administrative Code with the recommend changes from 82 
the Chief Building Official is attached to Ordinance 2023-06 as Exhibit “B.” The proposed changes 83 
are shown in the text of the Model Administrative Code by underline and strikethrough.  84 
 85 
The new provisions for milestone inspections of threshold buildings are under Section 110.9, pages 86 
38-41. The new language is taken almost verbatim from F.S. § 553.899, which was enacted by the 87 
Florida Legislature in 2022 following the collapse of a condo building in Surfside, Florida. This 88 
issue was discussed extensively by the Ponce Inlet Planning Board and Town Council in 2021 and 89 
2022. Since then, the Department has identified the buildings in Ponce Inlet that would be subject 90 
to the law and created a milestone inspection program. Several of these buildings have already 91 
initiated their own inspections starting in late 2021. The program will begin in earnest for all 92 
jurisdictions once the State releases its official list of threshold buildings sometime in 2024. The 93 
Department will need to propose new fees for this specialized type of inspection before the 94 
program commences. 95 
 96 
RECOMMENDATION 97 
Staff recommends approval of proposed Ordinance 2023-06 updating Code of Ordinances 98 
Chapter 18 – Buildings and Building Regulations; adopting the Florida Building Code, 8th Edition 99 
(2023) and certain appendices thereto; adopting the NFPA 70 National Electrical Code; adopting 100 
the 2021 International Property Maintenance Code; and adopting the BOAF’s Model 101 
Administrative Code (2023) with local additions thereto. 102 
 103 
 104 
          November 9, 2023 105 
Robert Baker, Chief Building Official/Certified Floodplain Manager Date 106 
 107 
 108 
Attachment:  109 
1. Summary of Local Changes to Model Administrative Code  110 



Ordinance No. 2023-06 
Page 1 of 4 

ORDINANCE 2023-06 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, 3 
AMENDING CHAPTER 18 OF THE PONCE INLET CODE OF 4 
ORDINANCES RELATING TO PERMITTING AND CONSTRUCTION 5 
REQUIREMENTS; ADOPTING THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, 8th  6 
EDITION (2023) TOGETHER WITH CERTAIN APPENDICES 7 
THERETO; ADOPTING THE 2021 INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY 8 
MAINTEANCE CODE; ADOPTING THE MOST RECENT EDITION 9 
OF THE NFPA 70 NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE (NEC); 10 
ADOPTING THE BUILDING OFFICIALS ASSOCIATION OF 11 
FLORIDA’S MODEL ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (2023) TOGETHER 12 
WITH CERTAIN ADDITIONS THERETO; PROVIDING DIRECTIONS 13 
TO THE TOWN MANAGER; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 14 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 15 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 16 

 17 
WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet actively participates in the enforcement of 18 

regulations relevant to safe, sanitary, and habitable property maintenance and structures; and  19 
  20 
 WHEREAS, the Florida Building Code is adopted, modified, updated, interpreted, and 21 
maintained by the Florida Building Commission and enforced by authorized state and local 22 
governments, pursuant to F.S. § 553.72(3); and 23 
 24 
 WHEREAS, the Florida Building Commission updates the Florida Building Code every 25 
three years, pursuant to F.S. § 553.73(7)(a); and 26 
 27 
 WHEREAS, the Florida Building Commission has adopted the Florida Building Code, 8th 28 
Edition (2023); and 29 
 30 
 WHEREAS, local governments, such as the Town of Ponce Inlet, may adopt amendments 31 
to the administrative provisions of the Florida Building Code, pursuant to F.S. § 553.73(4)(a), 32 
which are found in Chapter 1 of the Florida Building Code; and 33 
 34 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet has determined that it is in the best interest of the 35 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens, businesses within the Town, and patrons of such 36 
businesses, to adopt and incorporate by reference the Florida Building Code, 8th Edition (2023) as 37 
published by the Florida Building Commission; and  38 
 39 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet has determined that it is in the best interest of the 40 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens, businesses within the Town, and patrons of such 41 
businesses, to adopt and incorporate by reference the most recent version of the International 42 
Property Maintenance Code (2021) as published by the International Code Council; and 43 
 44 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet has determined that it is in the best interest of the 45 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens, businesses within the Town, and patrons of such 46 



Ordinance No. 2023-06 
Page 2 of 4 

businesses, to adopt and incorporate by reference the most recent version of the NFPA 70 National 47 
Electrical Code (NEC) as published by the National Fire Prevention Association.  48 
 49 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Ponce Inlet has determined that it is in the best interest of the 50 
health, safety, and welfare of the citizens and businesses within the Town, and the patrons of such 51 
businesses, to adopt and incorporate by reference the most recent version of the Model 52 
Administrative Code published by the Building Officials Association of Florida (BOAF), such 53 
Model Administrative Code being Chapter 1 of the Florida Building Code, with local additions 54 
thereto recommended by the Town’s Chief Building Official; and  55 

 56 
WHEREAS, this ordinance is enacted under the general home rule and police powers of 57 

the Town of Ponce Inlet;  58 
 59 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 60 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA: 61 
 62 
NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Ponce Code of Ordinances, 63 

strikethrough constitutes deletions from the current Code of Ordinances, and asterisks (***) 64 
indicate an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged.  65 

 66 
SECTION 1. Legislative Findings and Intent. The findings set forth in the recitals above 67 

are hereby adopted as legislative findings pertaining to this Ordinance. 68 
 69 

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Amendments. The proposed amendments to Chapter 70 
18 of the Ponce Inlet Code of Ordinances are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit “A,” 71 
and are hereby incorporated into the text of this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein 72 
verbatim as the Code of Ordinances amendments, said amendments also adopting by 73 
reference the Florida Building Code, 8th Edition (2023), the 2021 International Property 74 
Maintenance Code, and the NFPA 70 National Electrical Code (NEC). 75 

  76 
 SECTION 3. As reflected in Exhibit “A,” Chapter 18, Section 31 of the Town of Ponce 77 
Inlet Code of Ordinances is amended to adopt BOAF’s Model Administrative Code for the Florida 78 
Building Code, 8th Edition (2023). Pursuant to its authority under F.S. § 553.73(4)(a), and based 79 
on the recommendations of the Town’s Building Official, the Town further adopts certain 80 
additions to the BOAF’s Model Administrative Code, which are reflected in the Model 81 
Administrative Code attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit “B,” and which are incorporated by 82 
reference as if fully set forth herein. The Town’s additions to the BOAF Model Code are on file in 83 
the office of the town clerk.  84 
 85 
 SECTION 4. Directions to the Town Manager. Pursuant to F.S. § 553.73(4)(a), within 86 
thirty (30) days of the date of adoption of this Ordinance, the Town Manager or designee shall 87 
submit a copy of this Ordinance, together with all attachments thereto and all documents adopted 88 
by reference herein, to the Florida Building Commission, c/o Ms. Marlita Peters, Code 89 
Administration TAC, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, FL 32399; or shall upload the 90 
Ordinance, together will all attachments thereto and all documents adopted by reference herein, to 91 



Ordinance No. 2023-06 
Page 3 of 4 

the Commission by accessing and logging on to the Commission’s webpage at 92 
www.floridabuilding.org.  93 

 94 
SECTION 5.    Codification. It is the intent of the Town Council of the Town of Ponce 95 

Inlet that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified. The codifier is granted broad and 96 
liberal authority in codifying the provision of this Ordinance. 97 

 98 
SECTION 6.  Severability. If any section, sentence, phrase, word or portion of this 99 

Ordinance is determined to be invalid, unlawful or unconstitutional, said determination shall not 100 
be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any other section, sentence, phrase, 101 
word or portion of this Ordinance not otherwise determined to be invalid, unlawful or 102 
unconstitutional. 103 
 104 

SECTION 7.  Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 105 
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 106 
 107 

SECTION 8. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 108 
passage and adoption. 109 
  110 
 It was moved by     and seconded by   that said Ordinance 111 
be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 112 
   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #1     113 
   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2               114 
   Councilmember White, Seat #3  ______  115 
   Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    116 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #5     117 

Passed on first reading this ____ day of _____________ 2023. 118 

 It was moved by     and seconded by _________________ that said 119 
Ordinance be adopted on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion 120 
resulted as follows: 121 
   Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #1     122 
   Councilmember Milano, Seat #2               123 
   Councilmember White, Seat #3    124 

Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4    125 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #5     126 

 127 
Passed this    day of _____________ 2023. 128 
       129 
      Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 130 
 131 

http://www.floridabuilding.org/


Ordinance No. 2023-06 
Page 4 of 4 

 132 
 133 
           134 
      Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 135 
 136 
ATTEST: 137 
 138 
______________________________ 139 
Kim C. Cherbano,  140 
Town Clerk  141 
 142 



Page 4 of 6 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Summary of Local Changes to Model Administrative Code 
 

Section 101 – General (pg. 3) 
• Section 101.2.1 Appendices. – Updated reference to 2023 Florida Building Code; 

Appendix C – removed reference to Chapter 9B-52 F.A.C. 

• Section 101.4.4 Property maintenance. – Updated to newest version 2021 International 
Property Maintenance Code. 

 
Section 102 – Applicability (pgs. 5-6) 

• 102.2 Building. – Adds exemption to the Florida Building Code for “drone port,” as 
required by state law.  

• 102.6 Existing structures. – Updated to newest version 2021 International Property 
Maintenance Code. 

 
Section 103 – Department of Building Safety (pg. 7) 

• 103.3 Deputies. – Updated to newest version 2021 International Property Maintenance 
Code. 

 
Section 104 – Duties and Powers of Building Official (pgs. 7 and 9) 

• Section 104.2.1 Determination of substantially improved or substantially damaged existing 
buildings and structures in flood hazard areas. – Added R322 of the Florida Building Code, 
Residential, as applicable. 

• Section 104.11 Alternative materials, design and methods of construction and equipment. 
– Created criteria for approval of proposed alternative materials. 

 
Section 105 – Permits (pgs. 11, 13-17, 20) 

• Section 105.2 Work exempt from permit, Building (10). – Removed “cabinets, and vanities 
unless electrical or plumbing will be disconnected and/or altered from their original 
locations.” 

• Section 105.2 Work exempt from permit, Plumbing (3). – Deleted. 

• Section 105.3.1.2 – Added language regarding certain types of fire protection systems. 

• Section 105.3.1.2(4) – Added Exception: Simplified permitting process for fire alarm 
system projects, including definitions of “component,” “contractor,” “fire alarm system 
project,” and “fire sprinkler system project,”; added requirements for permit application, 
plan submittal, permit issuance, and inspections. 

• Section 105.3.1.3 Reviewing application for building. – Added new subsection 
incorporating changes to permit applications, reviews, and inspections consistent with 
recent changes to state law. 

• Section 105.3.8 Contracts. – Replaced former language regarding public right of way with 
new restriction on requesting copies of contracts with permit applications, as now 
established under state law.  



Page 5 of 6 

• Section 105.3.9 Public right of way. – Language moved to this location from Section 
105.3.8 Contracts. Prevents the Building Official from issuing a building permit for certain 
types of work until a right-of-way permit has been issued first. 

• Section 105.4.1.5 – Prevents a building enforcement agency from requiring changes to 
plans or specifications to a building permit after the permit has been issued, unless 
necessary to comply with the Florida Building Code or other applicable life/safety codes. 

• Section 105.14.1 Affidavits in flood hazard areas. – Changed from an “Exception” and 
given its own subsection number; and added that the building official shall review and 
inspect flood load and flood resistance requirements for permits issued on the basis of an 
affidavit. 

Section 107 – Submittal Documents (pgs. 22, 25, 28-30) 
• Section 107.1 General. – Removed “in two or more sets” and added “in accordance with 

Florida Statute 553.79”. 

• Section 107.3.4 Design professional in responsible charge. – Replaced “substitute” with 
“successor” and added statutory reference for requirements pertaining to design 
professionals. 

• Section 107.3.5 Minimum plan review criteria for buildings. – Added “building 
envelope.”  

• Section 107.3.5 Minimum plan review criteria for buildings, Commercial, Mechanical. – 
Added #18 “Smoke and/or Fire Dampers.” 

• Section 107.3.5 Minimum plan review criteria for buildings – Residential (one-and two-
family) (4). – Added “and/or carbon monoxide alarm/.” 

• Section 107.3.5 Manufactured Buildings (2) Structural – Added “flood.” 

• Section 107.6.2 Affidavits Provided Pursuant to Section 553.791, Florida Statutes. – Added 
new subsection requiring the Building Official to review any affidavit certifying 
compliance with the flood load and flood-resistant construction requirements of the Florida 
Building Code.” 

• Section 107.7 – Requires the Building Official or inspector to provide plan review 
comments with applicable code citations to the local enforcing agency. 

 
Section 110 – Inspections (pgs. 31-32, 35-36, 38-41) 

• Section 110.1.2 Inspection service. – Added, language requiring inspectors to be licensed 
under Chapter 471 or 481 of Florida Statutes. 

• Section 110.3 Required inspections, Building (1.2). – Requires foundation or form board 
surveys to be prepared and certified by a Florida-licensed professional surveyor and 
mapper, and deleted option to uncover all property line markers and string-up all property 
lines for inspection in lieu of providing a survey. 

• Section 110.3.3 Lowest floor elevation. – Florida Building Code reference number changed 
from Section 1612.5 to 1612.4 and added reference to Florida Building Code Section R322.  

• Section 110.3.6 Weather-exposed balcony and walking surface waterproofing. – Deleted 
“snow.” 



Page 6 of 6 

• Section 110.3.8 Energy efficiency inspections – Deleted “Chapter 13.” 

• Section 110.9 Mandatory Structural Inspections for condominiums and cooperative 
buildings. – Created new section and subsections pursuant to F.S. § 553.899, adopted in 
2022 following the Surfside condo building collapse.  

• Section 110.9.1 General. – Adopts legislative findings for statewide structural inspection 
program for aging condominium and cooperative buildings. 

• Section 110.9.2 – Adds definitions of “milestone inspection” and “substantial structural 
deterioration.” 

• Section 110.9.3 – Establishes deadlines for initial milestone inspections and subsequent 
inspections, and allowing deadline extensions for good cause.  

• Section 110.9.4 – Requires the condominium or cooperative association to arrange and pay 
for the preparation of the milestone inspection report. 

• Section 110.9.5 – Requires the local enforcement agency to provide written notice on the 
inspection requirement to the condominium or cooperative association and for the 
association to provide notice to its residents. 

• Section 110.9.6 – Requires the Phase 1 milestone inspection to be completed within 180 
days after the building owners receive notice of the inspection requirement. 

• Section 110.9.7 – Establishes requirements for Phase 1 and Phase 2 milestone inspections. 

• Section 110.9.8 – Creates requirements for the content of Phase 1 and Phase 2 milestone 
inspection reports. 

• Section 110.9.9 – Requires condominium or cooperative association to provide a copy of 
the milestone inspection report to unit owners. 

• Section 110.9.10 – Authorizes the local enforcement agency to create timelines and 
penalties for noncompliance. 

• Section 110.9.11 – Allows local governments to create deadlines for condominium or 
cooperative associations to begin repairs based on a Phase 2 inspection report. 

 
Section 111 – Certificate of Occupancy (pg. 41) 

• Section 111.2 (6) Certificate issued. – Changed “authority having jurisdiction” to “building 
official”. 

 



  1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
AMENDMENTS TO CHAPTER 18. Chapter 18 of the Town of Ponce Inlet Code of Ordinances, titled 1 
BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS, is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows:  2 
 3 
Chapter 18 - BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS  4 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  5 

* * * 6 

Sec. 18-3. – Submission of surveys.  7 

(a) Survey required. In order to demonstrate compliance with all town zoning and building regulations, 8 
the applicant or contractor must provide the following, as outlined in TableChart 18-1 below: 9 

(1) A boundary survey at the time of building permit application; 10 

(2) A form-board survey prior to construction of permanent improvements that are not easily altered 11 
or modified in their location, size or shape; 12 

(3) An as-built survey prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy or a certificate of completion; 13 
and 14 

(4) When building permit plans call for construction within five (5) feet of the height limitation in the 15 
applicable zoning district, a survey of height provided prior to the issuance of a certificate of 16 
occupancy. 17 

(b) Types of permits requiring survey submission: 18 

(1) New construction 19 

(2) Building addition 20 

(3) Swimming pools and spas 21 

(4) Accessory buildings and structures 22 

(5) Fences and walls 23 

(6) Nonexempt retaining walls, per LUDC Sec. 4.3.5 24 

(7) Parking areas and driveways 25 
 26 
Table Chart 18-1: 27 

Type Boundary 
survey 

Form-board 
survey 

As-built survey Height/ 
elevation* 

New construction     
Building addition     
Swimming pool & pool deck     
Accessory buildings & structures     
Fences and walls     

 * When building permit plans call for construction within five feet of the zoning district height limitation. 28 



  2 

* * * 29 

Sec. 18-4. - Posting of address numbers.  30 

All buildings in the town shall have their assigned address numbers properly displayed. It shall be the 31 
duty of the owners and occupants of each building to post the assigned address number on the property 32 
in the following manner:  33 

(a)  The address number shall be affixed to the front of the building or to a separate structure to the 34 
front of the building (such as a mailbox, post, wall, fence, etc.) in such a manner so as to be 35 
clearly visible and legible from the public or private way on which the building fronts from both 36 
directions. For properties abutting the Atlantic Ocean, this requirement shall also apply to the 37 
rear face of the building so that the address is visible from the beach. The addressing for all 38 
properties fronting the Atlantic Ocean shall be in place within 120 days of the effective date of 39 
the amending ordinance. 40 

(b)  Numerals shall be Arabic and shall not be less than three inches in height and one-half inch in 41 
width. For properties abutting the Atlantic Ocean, address numerals intended to be visible from 42 
the beach shall be a minimum of 12 inches in height. 43 

(c)  The numerals shall be of a contrasting color with the immediate background of the building or 44 
structure on which such numerals are affixed.  45 

Sec. 18-5. - Florida Building Code adopted.  46 

There is hereby adopted by the town for the purpose of establishing rules and regulations for the 47 
construction, maintenance, and repair of buildings, including permits and penalties, that certain code 48 
known as the Florida Building Code, 87th Edition (20232020), as published by the International Code 49 
Council, Inc., as though fully set forth herein.  50 

The following Florida Building Code, 87th Edition (20232020) appendices are hereby adopted and 51 
incorporated as though fully set forth herein: “Florida Building Code – Building, Appendix J”; “Florida 52 
Building Code—Existing Building, Appendix B”; “Florida Building Code—Fuel Gas Code, Appendices A and 53 
B”; and Florida Building Code—Plumbing, Appendices B, C, D, and E.”  54 

Copies of the above-referenced codes and appendices are filed in the office of the town clerk.  55 

* * * 56 

Sec. 18-7. - Restrictions on building and construction operations on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays.  57 

Building and construction activities shall only be allowed during the days and hours listed in Table 18-58 
2 below. All work not allowed during the days and hours listed below shall be prohibited. 59 

Table 18-2 60 

Days of the Week and Hours Allowed Work Prohibited Work 

Weekdays (M-F) that are not 
holidays 

7:00 am to 6:00 pm 

 

Construction and building 
operations, including erection of 
principal buildings, accessory 
buildings, or any other structure 

 



  3 

Days of the Week and Hours Allowed Work Prohibited Work 

 or part thereof, and alteration or 
repair. 

Excavating, grading, demolition, 
or clearing.  

Saturdays 

8:30 am to 5:00 pm 

Construction and building 
operations, including erection of 
principal buildings, accessory 
buildings, or any other structure 
or part thereof, and alteration or 
repair. 

Excavating, grading, demolition, 
or clearing. 

Sundays  

 

Repair and maintenance work on 
existing single-family residences, 
including, painting, wallpapering, 
carpeting, tiling, minor repairs, 
yard work, etc. 

Emergency repairs for major 
structural damage caused by 
catastrophic event or natural 
phenomenon. 

Construction and building 
operations, including erection of 
principal buildings, accessory 
buildings, or any other structure 
or part thereof, and alteration or 
repair. 

Excavating, grading, demolition, 
or clearing. 

Delivery and unloading of 
construction and building 
materials. 

Official Holidays observed by 
the Town, per Section 1-2 

8:30 am to 5:00 pm 

 

Construction and building 
operations, including erection of 
principal buildings, accessory 
buildings, or any other structure 
or part thereof, and alteration or 
repair. 

Excavating, grading, demolition, 
or clearing. 

National Holidays:  

New Year’s Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

 Construction and building 
operations, including principal 
buildings, accessory buildings or 
any other structure or part 
thereof, and alteration or repair. 

Excavating, grading, demolition, 
or clearing. 

Delivery and unloading of 
construction and building 
materials. 

 61 



  4 

(a) Generally. Construction and building operations, including erection of principal buildings, accessory 62 
buildings or any other structures or part thereof, alteration or repair is prohibited, except as otherwise 63 
provided in this section, on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays as specified in section 1-2. Excavating, 64 
grading, or demolition or clearing shall be prohibited on Saturdays, Sundays and the following national 65 
holidays observed by the town: New Year’s Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; 66 
Thanksgiving Day; and Christmas Day.  67 

(b) When permitted. Construction and building operations, including erection of principal buildings, 68 
accessory buildings or any other structures or part thereof, excavation, grading, demolition, clearing, 69 
alteration or repair, are permitted between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays that 70 
are not holidays. Such construction and building operations are permitted between the hours of 8:30 71 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays and official holidays, as defined by section 1-2.  72 

(c) Exemption for existing single-family residences. Repair and maintenance work on existing single-73 
family residences is permitted on weekends and holidays. Such activities include, but are not limited 74 
to, painting, wallpapering, carpeting, tiling, minor repairs, yard work, etc.  75 

(d) Delivery and unloading of construction materials. The delivery and unloading of construction and 76 
building materials is expressly prohibited on Sundays and national holidays.  77 

(e) Emergency repairs. Emergency repairs for major structural damage caused by catastrophic event or 78 
natural phenomenon are permitted on weekends.  79 

* * * 80 

ARTICLE II. - BUILDING CODE  81 

Sec. 18-31. - Model Administrative Code adopted; local additions to the Model Administrative code 82 
adopted.  83 

The Building Officials Association of Florida's (BOAF) Model Administrative Code (20232020) for the 84 
Florida Building Code, 87th Edition (20232020), is hereby adopted by reference as though fully set forth in 85 
this section, with certain local additions thereto recommended by the town's building official, as 86 
authorized by F.S. § 553.73(4)(a) and as reflected in Ordinance 2023-062021-02. The Model 87 
Administrative Code, which comprises Chapter 1 of the Florida Building code, with all of the town's 88 
additions, together with this section is on file in the office of the town clerk. 89 

* * * 90 

ARTICLE III. - ELECTRICAL CODE  91 

18-61. - Adopted.  92 

With the exceptions referenced below, the town hereby adopts the "NFPA 70, National Electrical Code 93 
(NEC),” as published by the National Fire Protection Association, and incorporates the same by reference 94 
as if fully set forth herein. Copies of the National Electric Code are on file in the office of the town clerk.  95 

* * * 96 

ARTICLE IX. - EXCAVATION AND GRADING CODE  97 

Sec. 18-241. - Adopted. 98 



  5 

There is hereby adopted by the town that certain volume of the Florida Building Code, 87th Edition 99 
(20232020) known as “Florida Building Code, Building, Appendix J, Grading” thereof, as published by the 100 
International Code Council, Inc. Copies of the subject code are filed in the office of the town clerk, and 101 
such code is hereby adopted and incorporated as fully as if set out at length in this section, and the 102 
provisions contained therein shall be controlling within the limits of the town.  103 

* * * 104 

ARTICLE XI. - HOUSING CODE  105 

Sec. 18-411. - International Property Maintenance Code adopted.  106 

(a) With the exceptions referenced below, the town hereby adopts the 20212018 Edition of the 107 
International Property Maintenance Code published by the International Code Council, Inc., and 108 
incorporates the same by reference as if fully set forth herein. Copies of the 20212018 International 109 
Property Maintenance Code, together with this section, are on file in the office of the town clerk.  110 

(b) The following sections of the adopted 2018 International Property Maintenance Code are hereby 111 
amended as follows:  112 

* * * 113 



























































































 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
 
Topic:  From the Town Manager 
 
Summary: Please see attached report. 
 
Requested by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 11/16/2023 

Agenda Item:   15 



 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To: Town Council   
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: November 9, 2023 
Subject: Town Manager’s Report 
             
 

MEETING DATE: November 16, 2023 
 

1. On October 24, 2023, I attended the Legislative Delegation meeting in DeLand, along with 
Public Safety Director Scales, Mayor Paritsky, and Councilman-elect White, to present our 
requests for legislative appropriation as discussed at the October 19th Council meeting. These 
include new replacement generators for the Fire station and Public Works, and construction 
funds for the extending sewer to the Lighthouse Shores neighborhood. To assist us with these 
requests, we have retained the services of a lobbyist, Andrew Kalel with Sunrise Consulting 
Group. In a short time, he has already provided us with useful information to improve our 
proposals and our chances of success. 

2. County Council updates, November 7, 2023 meeting: 

• The County Council reviewed a proposal to expand the Interlocal Service Boundary 
Agreement with Ormond Beach to include the Hull Road fuel tank property. The 
ISBA gives Ormond Beach land use planning and development authority over 
properties inside the ISBA area. This circumvents SB 250, which prohibits local 
jurisdictions from adopting tougher development requirements if within 100 miles of 
where Hurricanes Ian and Nicole made landfall until 9-30-24. Volusia County is 
within 100 miles of the Hurricane Nicole landfall (Vero Beach), although Ormond 
Beach is not. The County Council is also initiating discussions with the owners of the 
property to purchase or lease it. 

• Reviewed an Amendment to Grant Agreement with the FDEP for an additional 
$40,010,255 for the feasibility study, design, permitting, and construction of the 
Volusia County 2022 Hurricane Ian and Nicole Recovery Project. This is in addition 
to the $37,689,745 awarded this past April, for a total of $77,700,000. Of this, 
$1,400,000 is for the feasibility study, design, and permitting, while the remainder is 
for construction. 

https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20231107/Item-02-11342.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20231107/Item-02-11342.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20231107/Item-03-11341.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20231107/Item-10-11363.pdf


2 

3. Toward the beginning of next calendar year, the Town will begin contacting property owners 
with irrigation meters about our backflow prevention requirements. Those properties that 
have separate irrigation meters connected to the Town’s water supply are required to have 
backflow prevention devices, which must be tested every two years. There are about 100 
properties that do not have such devices and will need to install them. We plan to notify them 
of the requirements via mail and other public notice methods with the goal of compliance 
within the next 6 months. 

4. Building permit update: Permit volume remains high. Typical average is approximately 100 
permits issued per month or 1,200 per year. Total permit applications year-to-date by the end 
of October is already at 1,406. We are on pace to end the year with over 1,600 permit 
applications. 

 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Avg 

Permit 
applications 

119 176 186 133 159 164 120 121 108 120 141 

Permits issued 144 104 160 141 138 144 148 114 108 120 121 

Plan reviews 87 166 183 138 152 134 157 115 117 112 136 

Inspections 295 235 403 319 289 323 233 320 293 347 306 

 


	11-16-23 Reg Mtg
	REGULAR MEETING

	4 Inauguration cover
	6 A B C Cover
	7 Consent
	7 Consent
	7C - Phase II Stormwater Pipe Cleaning.pdf
	Staff Memo - Phase II stormwater pipe cleaning - piggybacking of Orlando contract - 10-27-23.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.




	7B C4Pi Annual Report
	7C - Phase II Stormwater Pipe Cleaning
	Staff Memo - Phase II stormwater pipe cleaning - piggybacking of Orlando contract - 10-27-23.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.


	7D - SAM Staff Report
	8 Co-Sponsorship of Operation Changing Lives
	item 8-A
	8 Co-Sponsorship of Operation Changing Lives
	8A - 2023 OCL 5k_Request for Use of Town Property.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community



	10-19-2023 Regular mtg minutes - MD edits
	10A Ord 2023-05
	12A complete
	ADP512A.tmp
	Passed on first reading this ____ day of _____________ 2023.
	It was moved by     and seconded by _________________ that said Ordinance be adopted on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows:
	Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4
	Passed this    day of _____________ 2023.
	Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida
	Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor
	ATTEST:


	15 -A Town Manager report.pdf
	item 15
	TOWN MANAGER Announcements - TC - 11-16-23

	11-16-23 Reg Mtg.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING




